Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS)
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on
Thursday, 20th November, 2008 at 10.00 am
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.)
MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
B Atha S Bentley (Chair) C Campbell G Driver -

Weetwood
Otley and Yeadon
Middleton Park

C Fox -

Adel and Wharfedale

R Harington -

Gipton and Harehills

V Kendall J Lewis T Murray R Pryke A Shelbrooke L Yeadon -

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR

Kirkstall

Andy Booth
24 74325

Roundhay
Kippax and Methley
Garforth and Swillington
Burmantofts and Richmond
Hill
Harewood
Kirkstall

Principal Scrutiny Advisor:
Richard Mills
Tel: 2474557
Produced on Recycled Paper

A

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours
before the meeting).

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

B

Item
No
3

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of
the Members Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

6

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

1-6

To receive and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 23 October 2008
7

SESSION 2 - SKILLS INQUIRY

7 - 14

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development.
8

DRAFT STATEMENT - UNIVERSITY FEES

15 26

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development
9

WORK PROGRAMME
To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development

10

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday, 17 December at 10.00 a.m. (Premeeting for all Members at 09.30 a.m.)

C

27 76

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS)
THURSDAY, 23RD OCTOBER, 2008
PRESENT:

Councillor S Bentley in the Chair
Councillors B Atha, C Campbell, G Driver,
R Harington, J Lewis, R Pryke and
L Yeadon

24

Late Items
In accordance with her powers under Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the Chair admitted to the agenda as a late item of
urgent business the minutes of the University Fees Working Group meeting
held on 17th October 2008. These were not available at the time of agenda
despatch, but were required to be reported under Agenda Item 9 –Update on
Board’s Working Groups (Minute No 31 refers).

25

Declarations of Interest
No Member declarations of interest were made under this item (see later
Minute No 29)

26

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on behalf of
Councillors Fox and Kendall.

27

Minutes - 25th September 2008
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 25th September 2008
be confirmed as a correct record.

28

Matters Arising from the Minutes
(a)

29

Regional Governance Arrangements – Subnational Review of
Economic Development and Regeneration (SNR) (Minute No 19 refers)
In response to the Chair, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser reported that a
Government response on the SNR review had not yet been received.
When it was, he would circulate copies to Members.

Scrutiny Inquiry - Voluntary Community and Faith Sector in Leeds Session 2
Further to Minute 20, 25th September 2008, the Chair introduced Session 2 of
the Board’s Inquiry into issues surrounding the operation of the Voluntary,
Community and Faith Sector (VCFS) in Leeds and welcomed to the meeting
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 20th November, 2008

Page 1

the following witnesses, who gave presentations on the work of their
organisations and responded to Members’ queries and comments on various
issues, including the Council’s interaction with the VCFS in Leeds:Lisa Wright, Director, Leeds VOICE
Louise Megson, Chief Executive, St Luke’s CARES
Judith Hickman, Operations Manager and Richard Lancaster, Priority
Neighbourhood Worker, South Leeds Health for All.
In brief summary, the main issues arising during the discussion were:•
•
•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

The invaluable work done across the City by VCFS organisations, over
3,000 of which were affiliated to Leeds VOICE;
The professionalism of those VCFS organisations and the immense
involvement of local volunteers in them;
The marked move in recent years away from a ‘grants culture’ to a service
commissioning and outcomes-based system, with local VCFS
organisations recognised and acknowledged as vital partners in a wide
range of complex and comprehensive service provision, including the
planning and implementation of those services;
The good relationship which already existed between the Council and
VCFS in Leeds, and the valuable support already provided by the Council;
That in spite of this good relationship and partnership working, there was
still more which could be done to break down obstacles and to assist
VCFS organisations;
Although some Council services were already fully engaged and had
recognised the value of involving VCFS at an initial state (example
Children’s Services Commissioning Board), there were other areas, where
the VCFS were not involved, or where the degree of involvement and
communication were minimal (examples community safety and housing);
Sustainability of VCFS organisations and projects was raised. VCFS
organisations were highly vulnerable to financial variables, even the most
professional of them. The Council funding projects for only a period of 12
months was a concern. By the time the project was established and staff
recruited and trained, in reality you only got six months useful output from
that project. The Council needed to look to 3-5 year funding schemes, with
properly thought out and executed exit strategies, and other initiatives
such as ‘Trusted Partner Status’ for certain VCFS organisations which had
proved their worth;
Application processes for access to Council funding needed to be
proportionate, and the Council also needed to provide more advice and
support for local VCFS organisations wishing to apply;
The ‘Compact for Leeds’ provided a useful framework document to outline
the respective roles of the Council and the VCFS and the expectations of
each relative to the other. All partner organisations could self-assess
awareness and compliance with the Compact Codes of Conduct;
A gap was identified in terms of service provision for 8-13 year olds and
this was where consultation with local VCFS organisations was vital, to
identify local needs and solutions;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 20th November, 2008

Page 2

•
•

•

•

•

The national influence of third sector funding;
The role which Area Committees could play in improving and enhancing
links with local VCFS organisations, by promoting initiatives such as the
Extended Schools programme, for example;
A possible visit by Board Members to the Smoothie Bar, established by St
Luke’s CARES, was suggested, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser to canvass
Members:
The Principal Scrutiny Adviser also undertook to circulate copies of the
presentations made to today’s meeting, if the witnesses supplied him with
an electronic copy;
It was agreed that the Board should have another evidence-gathering
session, involving witnesses representing a faith group and the voluntary
sector. It was felt that perhaps a visit to one of their premises by a small
Working Group of Board Members might be the most appropriate way to
conduct this session, and again, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser undertook
to canvass for interested Members.

RESOLVED –
(a)
That the presentations be received and noted, and the witnesses be
thanked for attending and the manner in which they responded to
Members’ queries and comments;
(b)
That the points raised be included in the draft Inquiry report to be
submitted to the Board later in the municipal year;
(c)
That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser be requested to pursue the followup actions identified above, and to liaise with Members accordingly
(NB:

30

1 Councillor Driver declared a personal interest in this item in his
capacity as a Director / Trustee of Leeds Groundwork Trust;
2 Councillor Atha left the meeting at 10.45 am, during the
consideration of this item, and Councillors Campbell and Driver left
the meeting at 11.45 am at the conclusion of this item)

Scrutiny Inquiry - Inquiry into Skills- Session 1
Further to Minute No 21, 25th September 2008, the Chair introduced Session
1 of the Board’s Skills Inquiry, and welcomed to the meeting the following
witnesses, who set the scene in terms of the Leeds Strategic Plan, the Local
Area Agreement, the Leeds City Region Multi-Area Agreement and the
current review of Further Education in Leeds:Martin Dean, Deputy Director, Leeds Initiative
James Flanagan, Project Manager ( Regional Policy)
Jane Stageman, Senior Policy Manager, Planning, Policy and Improvement
Dylan Griffiths, Policy Manager, Planning, Policy and Improvement
In brief summary, the main issues arising during the discussion were:•

The demise of Learning and Skills Councils from 2010. The future
arrangements were in development, but were likely to involve a Young
People’s Learning Agency for 14 -19 funding, a Skills Funding Agency for

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 20th November, 2008

Page 3

•

•
•

19+ funding and a national apprenticeship agency. The new arrangements
might involve clusters of neighbouring authorities and FE colleges;
The ambitious improvement targets contained in the Leeds Strategic Plan,
based on the ambitions of the Leitch review, and the part which the
evolving economic situation might play in terms of revising targets and the
higher level skills plan;
The need to ensure links between wider skills issues and specific
proposals for higher level skills under the City Region initiative;
The need for local consultation and input, at Ward level, to tap into local
knowledge and concerns and to ensure that ‘solutions’ were not imposed
which were unrealistic and unachievable.

RESOLVED – That the report of the Assistant Chief Officer (Planning, Policy
and Improvement) be received and noted by way of an introduction to the
Board’s Inquiry, and the Board proceed with Session 2 on 20th November, as
proposed in the timetable.
(NB: Councillor Yeadon left the meeting at 12.00 noon during the
consideration of this item)
31

Progress Report on the Board's Working Groups
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report outlining
the proceedings at recent meetings of the Board’s Working Groups on Small
Businesses (7.10.08) and University Fees (17.10.08). A minor amendment
was agreed in respect of the University Fees Working Group meeting held on
17th October 2008 to delete the word ‘excellent’ from the final bullet point in
Paragraph 4.1.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the minutes of the above Working Group meetings be received
and the recommendations contained therein be approved;
(b)
That in respect of the proposed actions identified at Paragraph 5.1 of
the University Fees Working Group, 17th October, the Principal Scrutiny
Adviser prepare draft statements for proposed approval at the next
Board meeting on 20th November.

32

Work Programme
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted the Board’s work
programme, updated to reflect decisions taken at previous meetings, together
with a relevant extract from the Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions for
the period 1st October 2008 to 31st January 2009 and the minutes of the
Executive Board meeting held on 8th October 2008.
RESOLVED –That subject to any changes necessary as a result of today’s
meeting, the work programme be received and approved.

33

Date and Time of Next Meeting
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 20th November, 2008

Page 4

Thursday 20th November 2008 at 10.00 am (Pre-meeting at 9.30 am)

The meeting concluded at 12.30 pm

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 20th November, 2008

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 7
Originator: James Flanagan
&
Richard Mills
Tel: 3951996 / 2474557

Joint report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy & Improvement) & Head
of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 20th November 2008
Subject: Session 2 – Skills Inquiry
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Introduction

1.1

The Board at its last meeting received an introduction to the Local Area
Agreement (LAA), Multi Area Agreement (MAA) and Further Education (FE). In
particular considered the background and relationships of the LAA, MAA and FE in
contributing towards meeting the target indicators with our partners as set out in the
Council’s Strategic Plan 2008/2011. It also covered the scope and the rationale
behind the targets which have been set.

1.2

A copy of the Board’s approved terms of reference for this inquiry is attached.

2.0

Session 2 of the Board’s Inquiry
(i) Multi Area Agreement

2.1

The purpose of the first part of today’s session is to consider the current proposed
arrangements for the MAA in Leeds. In particular the Board will consider the
rationale for the MAA (evidence based) and the proposed outcomes of the MAA,
and impact on Leeds businesses and residents.

2.2

The Multi Area Agreement (MAA) for the Leeds City Region is one of the first of the
new style cross-boundary partnership initiatives to be put in place nationally. It
seeks to promote and sustain economic growth and prosperity in the City Region.

2.3

The development of the MAA has been informed by the economic evidence base
used for the 2006 City Region Development Programme (CRDP), and more recent
data and policy developments, including the Leitch Review of Skills.

2.4

The MAA sets out a series of targets for economic development and for improving
Page 7

the provision of higher level skills and enhancing transport connectivity in the city
region. In turn, Government has agreed to the delegation of certain freedoms and
flexibilities that will support better delivery by Local Government and other partners
including Yorkshire Forward, the Learning and Skills Council and Job Centre Plus.

2.5

The skills component of the MAA will deliver the following delegated freedoms and
outcomes over the next three years:
•
•

•

2.6

Government recognition of the city region priority to address gaps in higher level
skills
Commitment of Government and its agencies, such as the Learning and Skills
Council, to support the development of a strategic framework for skills investment
in the city region, and to consult the city region directly on key national and
regional plans and policies.
In order to boost the skills base in our small and medium sized enterprises,
agreement to develop and pilot flexibilities which ease the administrative burden
on employers in committing to levels 3 and 4 training for their workforce.

The MAA agrees series of outcomes with Government which focus on economic
performance (productivity and jobs) and specific targets for transport and skills. The table
below shows the specific targets which have initially been agreed on skills.

Outcome

Baseline
(i.e. 2008)

April 2009

April
2010

April
2011

To improve the skills of
the population
throughout their
working lives to create
a workforce capable of
sustaining economic
competitiveness and
enable individuals to
thrive in the global
economy1

Estimated
baseline, based
on economically
active adults
qualified at level 4
(28.1%) and level
3 (48.4%)

Pilot
programme
designed and
implemented.

10%
above

10%
above

2.7

The table above shows the additional higher level skills attained/skills gaps reduced
through the proposed relaxed accreditation pilot, with an annual 10% improvement on
established baseline within the representative pilot cohort of circa 200 small and
medium sized enterprises. Both estimated baseline and improvement were agreed
with Government as a holding measure and shall be subject to review in due course.

2.8

The following witnesses have been invited to attend this part of the session on the
MAA targets:
Ann Craven, Learning & Skills Council
Mandy – Crawford Lee, Learning & Skills Council
Carson McCombe, Bradford City Council lead officer on the MAA
Rob Norreys Chief Executive’s, Leeds City Council
James Flanagan, Chief Executive’s, Leeds City Council

1

Department of Innovation Universities and Skills – Departmental Strategic Objective

Page 8

(b) The future of FE in Leeds
2.9

This part of the session is to consider the proposed merger of 3 FE colleges in the
city and the likely impact on employers, individuals and communities
and to seek input from LSC, college principals and Leeds Skills Board on the plans
for:
•
•
•

the new college,
its governance, and
ability to respond to skills needs

2.10

The Learning and Skills Council has led a detailed process of consultation and
evidence gathering to consider the future arrangements for Further Education in the
city.

2.11

Detailed reports which set out the process are available from the Learning and
Skills Council – including the Cambridge Education post 16 review, GVA Grimley
review of the FE Estate, and the Strategic Options review of May 2007.

2.12

The outcome of this process is that three colleges are to merge, Park Lane (Leeds
and Keighley), Thomas Danby, Leeds College of Technology. The consultation
‘Excellence and Inclusion (May 2008)’ sets out the benefits of this merger and an
extract states that it will:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

create a unified and successful FE presence serving Leeds and the region
that contributes to improved economic success and social inclusion
make broad, coherent and comprehensive provision for young people and
adults to the highest possible standards, whilst conserving and extending
specialisms
place learners and employers at the heart of the system, enabling them to
influence what is on offer and how it is delivered
ensure full access in localities and neighbourhoods for learners at all levels
and all ability ranges, promoting inclusion
create excellent opportunities for employment
create a new city-wide FE estate for the 21st century
establish a new college which is financially healthy and meets national,
regional and local needs through the employment of best value principles

2.13

It is anticipated the new college will be formed from 1st January 2009.

2.14

Leeds College of Building and Joseph Priestley College decided to not participate in
the merger and to remain as independent institutions.

2.15

The following witnesses will attend this part of the session on the FE Colleges
merger:
Cristina George Learning and Skills Council (Re-organisation of FE Colleges)
Dean Martin, Deputy Chief Executive, Leeds Initiative
Ian Billyard, Principal, Leeds College of Building
Carolyn Wright, Principal, Joseph Priestley College
Page 9

2.16

The three Principals of the FE Colleges which are to merge are unable to attend
today as it is their Association of Colleges Annual Conference in Birmingham. It is
proposed that an additional session be added to the Board’s inquiry so that all the
Principals of the FE Colleges have an opportunity to give evidence to the Board. The
College Principals of three colleges which are to merge i.e. Park Lane (Leeds and
Keighley), Thomas Danby, and Leeds College of Technology have confirmed they
are able to attend the Board’s next meeting on the 17th December 2008.

3.0

Recommendations

3.1

The Board is asked to
(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Receive the joint report of the Assistant Chief Officer (Planning, Policy and
Improvement) and the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development) and
comment on and ask questions of the witnesses present.
Consider what, if any, further information or points of clarification the Board
requires to conclude Session 2 of its inquiry.
Discuss any subsequent issues.
Approve an additional Session for this inquiry on the 17th December 2008 to
hear from the Principals of the FE Colleges which are to merge.
Identify for session 3 of the Board’s Inquiry on 15th January 2009 the
witnesses it would like to hear evidence from.

Background Papers
None used

Page 10

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)
Inquiry into Skills
Terms of Reference
1.0

Introduction

1.1

On 3rd July the City & Regional Partnerships Scrutiny Board agreed to carry
out an inquiry into skills.

1.2

In particular, it was decided to investigate the following three individual areas:
(a) Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement
The background, activity and contribution of all interested parties towards
achieving the relevant improvement priorities and targets contained within the
LSP and any future plans in this regard. Two improvement priorities in the
Leeds Strategic Plan particularly address the issue of improving skill levels to
level 2 or higher, with reference to workforce development.
(b) Leeds City Region Multi Area Agreement (MAA),
The MAA for the Leeds city region has been developed to help close the gap
in higher level skills, and reduce transport congestion across the city region,
as identified within the City Region Development Programme (CRDP). The
MAA was signed off in July by the eleven City Region Local Authority Leaders
and government.
(c) The future of Further Education (FE) in Leeds
The Learning and Skills Council has consulted on the merger of Park Lane,
Thomas Danby and Leeds College of technology to form a new Leeds
College. The three colleges have agreed to the merger proposal, and it is
expected there will be substantial investment in the FE estate.

2.0

Scope of the inquiry

2.1

The purpose of the Inquiry is to make an assessment of, and, where
appropriate make recommendations on, the following areas of interest:
(a) Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement
The activity and contribution of all interested parties towards achieving the
relevant improvement priorities and targets contained within the LSP and
any future plans in this regard.
(b) The Leeds City Region MAA
The focus of the MAA skills proposals, which is on higher level skills (NVQ
levels 3 / 4 +) in priority business sectors.

Page 11

(c) The future of FE in Leeds.
To ascertain the extent that the merger will bring about improved learning
outcomes for employers, individuals and communities.
3.0

Comments of the relevant Director and Executive Board Member

3.1

The Directors of City Development and Environment & Neighbourhoods, and
the relevant Executive Board Members have been requested to comment on
these terms of reference.

4.0

Timetable for the Inquiry

4.1

The inquiry will take place over 6 sessions with a view to issuing a final report
in April 2009.

5.0

Submission of evidence

5.1

The following formal evidence gathering sessions have been scheduled:

5.2

Session 1 – 23rd October 2008
Introduction to the LAA, MAA and FE
To consider the background and relationships of the LAA, MAA and FE in
contributing towards meeting the target indicators with our partners as set out
in the Council’s Strategic Plan 2008/2011. It will also cover the scope and the
rationale behind the targets which have been set.

5.3

Session 2 – 20th November 2008
The Leeds City Region MAA
The purpose of this part of the session is to consider the current proposed
arrangements for the MAA in Leeds. In particular the Board will consider:
•
•

The rationale for the MAA (evidence base).
The proposed outcomes of the MAA, and impact on Leeds businesses
and residents.

The future of FE in Leeds
This part of the session is to consider the proposed merger of 3 FE
colleges in the city and the likely impact on employers, individuals and
communities and to seek input from LSC, college principals and Leeds Skills
Board on the plans for:
•
•
•

the new college,
its governance, and
ability to respond to skills needs.

Page 12

5.4

Session 3 – 15th January 2009
The Leeds City Region MAA
The purpose of this part of Session 3 is to consider any information requested
from the previous session and examine any possible future developments to
the MAA, eg City Region approaches to tackling worklessness.
The future of FE in Leeds
The purpose of this part of the session is to consider any information
requested from the previous session and further matters relating to the merger
of the 3 colleges and its impact in Leeds.

5.5

Session 4 - 26th February 2009
Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement
The purpose of this session is to look at how are partners who have signed up
to the LAA are delivering on the targets that have been set and to hear about
the changes they are making in order that they can meet those targets.
It will also explore individuals who are post school who have no
qualifications/ no level 1 and the extent to which services are effective.

5.6

Session 5 - 26th March 2009
Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement
The purpose of this session is to continue hearing evidence from the parties
signed up to the relevant improvement priorities and targets in the LSP and
any information requested from the previous session.

5.7

Session 6 – 30th April 2009
Final Report and Recommendations
The purpose of this Session is to consider the Board’s draft inquiry report and
recommendations.

6.0

Witnesses

6.1

The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors to the
Inquiry:
• Director of City Development
• Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods
• Relevant officers from the City Development and Environment and
Neighbourhoods Departments
• Head of Regional Policy
• Key partners such as: Bradford Council (MAA skills lead), WY
Universities, Learning and Skills Council, and Yorkshire Forward
(Regional Development Agency), FE Principals, Shadow Board of the
proposed new college, Leeds Skills Board.
Page 13

7.0

Monitoring Arrangements

7.1

Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of the final
inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the agreed
recommendations will be monitored.

7.2

The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed arrangements
for monitoring the implementation of the Board’s recommendations.

8.0

Measures of success

8.1

It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry has
been successful in making a difference to local people. Some measures of
success may be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry and can be included
in these terms of reference. Other measures of success may become
apparent as the inquiry progresses and discussions take place.

8.2

The Board will look to publish practical recommendations.

Page 14

Agenda Item 8
Originator: Richard Mills
Tel: 2474557
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)
Date: 20th November 2008
Subject: Draft Statement University Fees
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Introduction

1.1

At its meeting on 23rd October 2008 Members received the attached note (see
appendix 1 in the draft Statement) of the Scrutiny Board’s University Fees Working
Group which was established to look at the request for scrutiny from representatives
of Leeds University Unions concerning University fees.

1.2

The Working Group consisted of Councillors Bentley, Kendall, J Lewis, Atha and
Yeadon and made a number of recommendations.

1.3

The Board agreed that a draft Statement be prepared based on this note for
consideration at today’s meeting.

2.0

Draft Statement

2.1

A copy of the draft Statement is attached for Members consideration.

3.0

Comments on the Draft Statement

3.1

The following comments have been received from the Director of Children’s
Services with regard to recommendation 3 of the draft Statement
“A distinction should be made between the services provided by Connexions and
those provided by the Universities. Connexions PAs work with students prior to
entry to University. Once at University, they become the responsibility of that
institution and are referred to them for advice on fees, finance, accommodation,
welfare, careers.

Page 15

This recommendation does not make it wholly clear which students this post holder
would be working with, although point 11 on page 5 of the report would seem to
imply that it is only to work with the students at the Leeds Universities. This being
the case, these students do not fall within the current guidance requirements for
Connexions services, and are wholly the responsibility of the Universities, who are
funded separately to provide this sort of service.
Information on finances and fees for higher education is provided by DCFS, by
UCAS and by the Student Loans Company. This information is distributed to PAs
working in local schools and colleges to assist them in the guidance they provide to
individuals.
Major changes are currently being made to support services for HE candidates.
Those applying to HE for a 2009 start will be able to access IAG on student finance
from a central unit known as Student Finance England. The main vehicle for this will
be online, but there will also be a centralised telephone and e-mail service. There
will be regional partnerships linked to partner organisations and there will be a
Practitioners’ Helpline and website. From 2009 most applications for student finance
will be online and there will be earlier processing of applications. Candidates will be
able to apply for finance at the same time as they make their UCAS application and
the system will be detailed enough to provide information on fees charged at each
University and on bursaries / grants available for different income levels. Student
Finance England believe their website will be straightforward and easy to follow and
will supply all the information needed by a young person to make sensible choices.”
4.0

Recommendations

4.1

Members are asked to consider the attached statement having regard to the
comments received.

Background Papers
None used

Page 16

Draft Statement of
Scrutiny Board (City &
Regional Partnerships)
on

University Fees

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 17

Introduction
the University Unions who helped
Members with their deliberations.

Introduction
1.

At its meeting on the 21st July
2008 Scrutiny Board (City &
Regional Partnerships) considered
a request for scrutiny from the
University of Leeds Student Union
concerning their University Fees
campaign and the impact students
have on the Leeds economy.

2. The Board established a Working
Group to consider this request and
determine what further action, if
any, it wished to take concerning
the Government’s proposals to
remove the ceiling for University
Fees in April 2009 and the
economic impact students from our
two Universities have on the local
economy.

5. The Scrutiny Board on the 23rd
October
2008
accepted
the
recommendations of its Working
Group of 17th October not to
undertake a formal inquiry but that
a statement be prepared for
consideration by the Board at its
meeting on the 20th November
2008.
6. This report provides detail of the
discussion held and puts forward a
number of recommendations.
7. On the statements made by the
witnesses present the following
report represents the general
consensus of the Members.

3. The drivers for this are set out in
the Strategic Outcome of the
Council’s Strategic Plan 2008-2011
“to have an enhanced workforce
that will meet future challenges
through fulfilling individual and
economic potential and investing in
learning facilities” and in the
improvement priority to “enhance
the skill levels of the workforce to
fulfil individual and economic
potential”.

8. The Working Group would like to
thank
the
University
Union
representatives,
pro-ViceChancellors and officers who
assisted us with this piece of work.

4. The Working Group was delighted
to meet our external partners
Professor Vivien Jones, pro-ViceChancellor, University of Leeds and
Steve
Denton,
pro-ViceChancellor, Leeds Metropolitan
University and representatives from

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 18

Comments and
Recommendations
1. Our Working Group met on the 17th
October 2008 (see appendix 1) and
we considered with the pro-ViceChancellors from the University of
Leeds and Leeds Metropolitan
University and representatives from
the University Unions and the City
Development department the
following papers
• Extract of minute from Scrutiny
Board (City Development 21st
July 2008)
• Report of the Head of Scrutiny
and Member Development on
the request for scrutiny from
Leeds University Union
• Report of the Leeds University
Union
• Report of the Director of City
Development “The Local
Economic Impact of Students at
Leeds’ Two Universities
2. We were informed by the University
Unions of the current funding
model for tuition fees and the
potential impact on Leeds, if the
cap on fees is removed following
the Government’s review in 2009.
3. Issues identified and discussed
included
• The expectation that as fees rise
the number of students staying in
their home towns is likely to
increase and the numbers of
applicants for higher education
funding to fall.
• Recognition that the Leeds
Metropolitan University have a
distinctive and pioneering
approach to full time
undergraduate fees and that it
has only charged £2,000 since

•

•
•

•

•

•

the introduction of differential
fees.
That higher fees may result in
students shopping around for
Universities who are charging
lower undergraduate fees but
who may not be providing the
best or most suitable course.
That market forces may result in
less popular universities closing.
That Post 16 student levels in
Leeds were not currently high
enough to meet targets as
outlined in the Leeds Strategic
Plan and higher fees could have
an adverse effect on the number
of students moving into higher
education.
The concern that higher fees
would make it difficult for people
from social or economically
disadvantaged backgrounds to
apply for University places.
Recognition that the least well off
will be the first group of potential
students not to be able to afford
to go to University even in their
home town if University fees
increase further unless proper
support is offered through
bursaries.
That the local economic impact
of Leeds’ two universities is
substantial. They are
responsible for over £1.3bn of
output and 17,600 full time
equivalent (fte) jobs. Leeds’
Gross Value Added (GVA , a
measure of output) is around
£15.3bn and there are around
388,000 fte jobs so the
universities’ contribution is
around 9% and 5% respectively.
They also supply graduates each
year to the local economy.

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 19

Comments and
Recommendations
• That within these figures the
impact of students themselves
was smaller, but the wider impact
was dependent on the
universities attracting students in
the first place.
• That the student population of
Leeds contributed 10% of the
city’s economic input and 5% of
employment.
• That a third of graduates went on
to employment in Leeds
• That the figures (See appendix
2) are conservative because they
are based on slightly dated input
data, and the impact of
conference and events
expenditure, and the universities’
substantial role in supporting
local business competitiveness
and innovation were not
quantified in the report of the
Director of City Development.
4. We were advised that both
Universities want a properly funded
higher education system, but
recognise the high costs of high
volume progression to higher
education. Appropriate financial
support for students is crucial in
this context. The pro-Vice
Chancellor of Leeds Metropolitan
University referred to the fact that
they do have a ‘low charging high
impact’ policy in this regard.
5. We recognise that Equality and
Diversity are embedded in the
Leeds Strategic Plan and the
Council Business plan, with a
number of strategic outcomes and
priorities being directly linked to
equality and diversity issues. The

Council has an Equality and
Diversity Scheme which includes
an Action Plan outlining in more
detail how equality objectives will
be achieved. We take the view that
a University system that is fair to all
sections of our community is
fundamental to meeting these
objectives.
6. From the evidence presented to us
we concluded that there should be
adequate
funding
of
Higher
Education without removing the
cap on University fees.

Recommendation 1
That local MPs be asked to give
their support to the view that there
should be adequate funding of
Higher Education without
removing the cap on fees.

7. We heard from representatives of
the University Unions that bursary
schemes and access to funding
varies from University to University
and is often complex and difficult to
understand.
8. It was suggested to us by the
University Unions that there was a
massive under spend on bursary
schemes in Leeds. Administration of
bursaries was overseen by each
University across the UK, was
unregulated and each applied
different conditions and
criteria to those wishing to apply.

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 20

Comments and
Recommendations
9. The University of Leeds pro-ViceChancellor stated that where there
was underspend against budget on
bursaries, this underspend was used
for widening access activities. The
pro-Vice-Chancellor for the Leeds
Metropolitan University stated that
they do not have a bursary scheme,
given their distinctive ‘low charging
high impact’ approach to fees. They
both acknowledged the complexity
and difficulty in applying for such
help.
Recommendation 2
To complement recommendation 1
MPs and the Chief Executive
Education Leeds should be asked
to support the introduction of a
single national bursary system that
is easy to understand and access
through consistent and transparent
processes.

12. We considered the establishment of
a suitable post funded jointly by
the Universities and the City
Council to be worthy of further
investigation.
Recommendation 3
That the Director of Children’s
Services be asked to
consider whether the Council
would be prepared to fund with
the University of Leeds and Leeds
Metropolitan University the
establishment of a suitable post to
develop and improve the
information, advice and guidance
provided to students particularly in
relation to university application
processes and application for
financial support.

10. We acknowledged the collaborative
work that already exists between
the two Universities and the City
Council.
11. We noted the fact that both
Universities want to increase and
improve the quality of information,
advice and guidance that is
provided to their students
particularly around bursaries and
fees and acknowledged the
work they had already done in this
regard. We were asked if the
Council would be prepared to
consider some jointly funded post
with the Universities to develop
this area of work.
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 21

Appendix 1

Witnesses Heard

•

Professor Vivien Jones, pro-Vice-Chancellor, University of Leeds

•

Steve Denton, pro-Vice-Chancellor, Leeds Metropolitan University

•

Danial Adilypour, Education Officer, University of Leeds Student Union

•

Will Watson, Education Officer, Leeds Metropolitan University Student Union

•

Thomas Holvey, Senior Policy & Information Officer, City Development

•

Garry Milner, Head of 14-19 Strategy, Education Leeds

•

Mr Rob Damiao, Community Officer, Leeds University Union

Dates of Scrutiny (to date)
•

21st July 2008 Scrutiny Board (City Development)

•

17th October 2008 University Fees Working Group

•

23rd October Scrutiny Board (City Development)

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 22

Appendix 1
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)
University Fees Working Group
Meeting held on 17th October 2008
Present:
Councillor Sue Bentley (Chair)
Councillor Bernard Atha
Councillor Valerie Kendall
Councillor James Lewis
Others in Attendance:
Professor Vivien Jones, pro-Vice Chancellor, University of Leeds
Steve Denton, pro -Vice Chancellor, Leeds Metropolitan University
Danial Adilypour, Education Officer, University of Leeds Student Union
Will Watson, Education Officer, Leeds Metropolitan University Union
Thomas Holvey, Senior Policy & Information Officer, City Development
Garry Milner, Head of 14-19 Strategy, Education Leeds
Richard Mills, Principal Scrutiny Adviser, Democratic Services
1.0

Apologies and Welcome

1.1

Apologies were reported from Rob Damiao, Community Officer, Leeds
University Union and Councillor Lucinda Yeadon.

1.2

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and in particular Professor
Vivien Jones, Steve Denton, Danial Adilypour and Will Watson.

2.0

Request for Scrutiny

2.1

The Chair referred to the request for scrutiny which the Board had considered
on the 21st July from members of the University of Leeds Student Union with
regard to their fees campaign.

2.2

The Chair reported that the Board had deferred consideration of their request
and established this working group to consider if an inquiry was appropriate
and if so consider suitable terms of reference.

3.0

Background Papers

3.1

The Chair referred to the documents which had been circulated to everyone
present.

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 23

Appendix 1
4.0

Issues and Comments

4.1

A number of issues were identified and comments made during the
discussion including:
•
The Council’s Strategic Plan and FE
The Government’s proposals to remove the ceiling on University Fees
and that both universities wish to see a properly funded higher
education system
•
The desire of the Universities to provide better support and information
to its students and the work that has already been undertaken in this
regard
•
The fact that bursary schemes vary from university to university and
are often complex and difficult to understand
•
Leeds Metropolitan University complements Leeds University and are
meeting different student needs and not in direct competition
•
The need to continue to improve the infrastructure of the city
•
School results and courses available
•
That both Universities encourage wider participation through outreach
work with primary and secondary schools
•
The Aim Higher Education Project
•
The work and importance of the Leeds Benefits Service
•
The collaborative work that already exists between the two Universities
and the City Council

5.0

Proposed Actions

5.1

Members identified
(a) The fact that both Universities want to provide more information, advice
and guidance to potential students in Leeds particularly around bursaries
and fees and has asked whether the Council would be prepared to
consider some jointly funded post with the Universities.
(b) That local MPs be asked to give their support to the view that there should
be adequate funding of Higher Education without removing the cap on
fees. This should be complemented by a single national bursary system
that is easy to understand and access through consistent and transparent
processes.

6.0

Recommendations of the Member Working Group

6.1

The Working Group recommended to Scrutiny Board (City & Regional
Partnerships) that it request a draft statement to be prepared for its
consideration incorporating the proposed actions identified in paragraph 5
above.
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 24

Appendix 2
STRATHCLYDE MODEL RESULTS
The combined impacts of Leeds Metropolitan University and the University of Leeds
are presented here.
Economic impact of LMU and UL
Impact of
Impact of
Impact of
university
UK students international
expenditure
(based on
students
50,696 no.)
(based on
7,728 no.)
529
0
0

Combined
impact

1. Direct
529
output
(=turnover),
£m
2. Secondary
824 (550)
411 (240)
60(38)*
1,295 (828)
output, £m
3. Total
1,353 (1,079)
411 (240)
60(38)*
1,824 (1,357)
output
generated, £m
(1+2)
4. Direct
8,494
0
0
8,494
employment,
fte
5. Secondary
8,907 (6,394)
3,631 (2,320)
550 (373)
13,088 (9,087)
employment,
fte
6. Total
17,401 (14,888) 3,631 (2,320)
550 (373)
21,582 (17,581)
employment
generated, fte
(4+5)
7. Export
57
0
39
96
earnings, £m
All figures in brackets are the regional impact which comprises part of the main figure
*Generated from £39m of off-campus expenditure (see row 7)
All financial estimates rounded to nearest million
Fte = full-time equivalents (1 full-time job=2 part-time)
LMU figures based on 2006-7, UL on 2005-6 input data
GVA = Gross Value Added

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on
University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26

Agenda Item 9
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:247 4557
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 20th November 2008
Subject: Current Work Programme
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Appendix 1 to this report provides Members with a copy of the Board’s current
Work Programme.

1.2

Appendix 2 is the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1st
November to 28th February 2009.

1.3

Appendix 3 provides Members of the Board with the latest Executive Board minutes

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Board is requested to:
(i)

Determine from these documents whether there are any additional items the
Board would wish to add to its Work Programme.

(ii)

Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following
decisions made at today’s meeting.

Background Papers
None used
Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28

Page 29

Description

Notes

Type of
item

To hear from the Chief Executive on
work being undertaken to Narrow the
Gap through our partner
organisations

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Invitation to the Chief Executive and
Chair of the Leeds Initiative
Narrowing the Gap Executive

The Board agreed that it would be
appropriate to monitor progress
through the submission of a
quarterly or half yearly report to this
Board & from our partners on their
concerns & successes.

The Chief Executive would be
delighted to attend a Scrutiny Board
meeting but has a prior
engagements for the 20th November
and 17th December which he cannot
change. He has agreed to attend the
Board on the 15th January 2009.

PM

Meeting date – 20th November 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 31st October 2008
Session 3 Voluntary Community
To consider information requested at This is deferred pending the further
RP / DP
Faith Sector
the last Board meeting and to
meetings requested at the last Board
consider the Board’s draft inquiry
meeting with representatives of the
report and recommendations
faith and voluntary sector. These
meetings will be arranged with
Members of the Working Group
which was established by the Board.

Item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 30

To consider the current proposed
arrangements for the MAA in Leeds,
in particular the rationale for the
MAA (evidence base) and the
proposed outcomes of the MAA, and
impact on Leeds businesses and
residents; consider the proposed
merger of 3 FE colleges in the city &
the likely impact on employers,
individuals & communities & seek
input from LSC, college principals
and Leeds Skills Board on the plans.

Description
The Board approved terms of
reference for this inquiry at its
meeting in September following a
recommendation from the Skills
Working group it established earlier
in the year

Notes

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Meeting date – 17th December 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 28th November 2008
Tracking Recommendations
To consider a report on progress in
implementing the Board’s
recommendations to date.

Session 2 Inquiry into Skills

Item

MSR

RP/DP

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 31

Notes

To receive an Annual Report on
Performance against the Leeds
Strategic Plan

At the Board meeting in June 2008
officers recommended that this
Board was appropriately placed to
take an overview of this document

Deadline for receipt of Reports 29th December 2008
This Session is to consider any
The Board approved terms of
information requested from the
reference for this inquiry at its
previous session and examine any
meeting in September following a
possible future developments to the
recommendation from the Skills
MAA, eg City Region approaches to Working group it established earlier
tackling worklessness and further
in the year
matters relating to the merger of the
3 FE colleges and its impact in
Leeds.

Description

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Annual Report on Performance
against the Leeds Strategic Plan

Meeting date – 15th January 2009
Session 3 Inquiry into Skills

Item

MSR

RP/DP

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 32

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

This follows a recommendations
from Scrutiny Board (Central and
Corporate Functions) of 17th October
2008 following a Call-In which
investigated whether the key aims of
the partnership between the Council
and Marketing Leeds have been,
and will continue to be, achieved.

To consider a progress report from
the Chief Executive Marketing Leeds
which will include the outcome of
funding applications, details of its
work plan and the proposed contract
with the Council for 2009/10

Marketing Leeds

Notes

Deadline for receipt of Reports 6th February 2009
The purpose of this session is to
The Board approved terms of
look at how are partners who have
reference for this inquiry at its
signed up to the LAA are delivering meeting in September following a
on the targets that have been set
recommendation from the Skills
and to hear about the changes they Working group it established earlier
are making in order that they can
in the year
meet those targets. It will also
explore individuals who are post
school who have no qualifications/
no level 1 and the extent to which
services are effective.

Description

Meeting date – 26th February 2009
Session 4 Inquiry into Skills

Item

RP/DP

RP/DP

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 33
To approve the Board’s contribution
to the Scrutiny Boards Annual Report
2008/09.

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Annual Report

Session 6 Inquiry into Skills

Deadline for receipt of Reports 9th April 2009
The Board approved terms of
The purpose of this Session is to
reference for this inquiry at its
consider the Board’s draft inquiry
meeting in September following a
report and recommendations.
recommendation from the Skills
Working group it established earlier
in the year

Meeting date – April 2009

Notes

Deadline for receipt of Reports 6th March 2009
The purpose of this session is to
The Board approved terms of
continue hearing evidence from the
reference for this inquiry at its
parties signed up to the relevant
meeting in September following a
improvement priorities and targets in recommendation from the Skills
the LSP and any information
Working group it established earlier
requested from the previous session. in the year

Description

Meeting date – 26th March 2009
Session 5 Inquiry into Skills

Item

RP/DP

RP/DP

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 34

Councillors Bentley, Atha, Kendal

Councillors Bentley, Kendal, J Lewis,
Atha and Yeadon

Councillors Bentley, Driver, Yeadon
and J Lewis

Small Businesses

University Fees

Skills

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Membership

Working group

Working Groups

Work completed. Terms of
Reference approved for an inquiry
by the Board on the 25th September
2008.

Information from the working group
held on the 17th October 2008 will
be provided to the Board meeting on
23rd October.

Information from the working group
meeting held on 7th October 2008
will be reported to the Board on the
23rd October.

Progress update

22nd
September
2008

17th
October
2008

7th October
2008

Date last
meeting

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 35

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

28 Review of Called-In Decision - Grant Agreement with Marketing Leeds 2008/09

SCRUTINY BOARD (CENTRAL AND CORPORATE)
WEDNESDAY, 17TH SEPTEMBER, 2008

(Extract of minute below from Scrutiny Board Central and Corporate Functions)

The Chair reported this to the Board on the 23rd October that she had met with the Chief Executive, Marketing
Leeds, Deborah Green on the 20th October and agreed that she would bring a progress report to this Board in
February 2009 which would include the outcome of funding applications, details of its work plan and the
proposed contract with the Council for 2009/10

Marketing Leeds

The Transport Bill
The relationship between Local Government Yorkshire and Humber, Government Office for Yorkshire and the
Humber, the RDAs, Yorkshire Forward and the Regional Minister
Scrutiny Arrangements at a regional level

Outstanding Issues

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 36

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

The Board also considered the following additional information:• Marketing Leeds – Business Plan 2008/09;
• Marketing Leeds – Activity and Events Strategy 2008/09; and
• Marketing Leeds – Statutory Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2008;

The Board considered the following written evidence:• A copy of the Call-In request form; and
• A copy of the Delegated Decision Form dated 18th August, 2008 of the Chief Executive, together with a copy
of the accompanying report on which the decision was based.

‘I would like the Scrutiny Board to investigate whether the key aims of the partnership between the Council and
Marketing Leeds have been, and will continue to be, achieved.’

The decision had been called-in for review by Councillors J Lewis, J Dowson, L Mulherin, E Nash and L
Yeadon on the following grounds:-

‘In accordance with the Council’s agreed budget for 2008-09, a grant of £400,000 is payable to Marketing
Leeds Limited to undertake a range of activities as detailed in the attached grant agreement.’

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report, together with relevant background
papers, relating to an officer delegated decision, D34227 of the Chief Executive as follows:
Grant Agreement to Marketing Leeds 2008/09

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 37

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

RESOLVED –
(a) To note the Board’s support for Marketing Leeds;
(b) That the Officer Delegated Decision D34227 be immediately released for implementation;
(c) That the Chief Executive reports back to the Scrutiny Board (Central and Corporate) at the October
meeting regarding amendments to paragraphs 6 (Obligations of Marketing Leeds) and 8 (Performance
Monitoring) of the funding agreement between Leeds City Council and Marketing Leeds;

29 Outcome of Call-In

RESOLVED – That the report and information appended to the report be noted.

The following officers were also in attendance to respond to Members’ queries and comments:• Paul Rogerson, Chief Executive;
• James Rogers, Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement);
• Jean Dent, Director of Development Services; and
• Deborah Green, Chief Executive of Marketing Leeds.
The Board then questioned Officers at length on the information provided and evidence submitted.

Councillors J Lewis and L Mulherin attended the meeting to present evidence to the Board. Councillor J Lewis
gave a presentation outlining the reasons for the call-in request.

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 38

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

(d) That the Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) consider a broader inquiry into the work and
positive achievements of Marketing Leeds; and
(e) That the draft funding agreement between Leeds City Council and Marketing Leeds for 2009/10 be brought
before the relevant Scrutiny Board for comment prior to agreement.

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY & REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (November) 2008 APPENDIX 1

Page 39

Request to enter into a
contract with Foundation
Housing for the Temporary
Emergency
Accommodation
Service/Resettlement
Service
To authorise the entering
into of a contract following
a competitive tendering
exercise to provide
Housing related support for
a period of 3+1+1 years
with Foundation Housing.

Middleton Sissons 20mph
zone
Permission to construct the
scheme and implement a
20mph Zone

Key Decisions

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Chief Highways
Officer

Decision Maker

3/11/08

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

N/A

Internal, and external
consultation with
Members, Emergency
Services and Metro
has taken place.
Public consultation is
ongoing.

Proposed
Consultation

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
For the period 1 November 2008 to 28 February 2009

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Report and tender
documentation

None.

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Appendix 2

Page 40

Request to enter into a
Service Level Agreement
with Adult Social Care for
the Provision of Supporting
People Services for People
with Learning Disabilities
Approval to enter into
Supporting People Service
Level Agreement with
Leeds City Council, Adult
Social Care Directorate for
a period of 18+6 months.

Request to enter into a
Service Level Agreement
with Adult Social Care for
the Provision of Supporting
People Services for People
with Learning Disabilities
Approval to enter into
Supporting People Service
Level Agreement with
Leeds City Council, Adult
Social Care Directorate for
a period of 3 + 1 years.

Key Decisions

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Decision Maker

3/11/08

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

N/A

N/A

Proposed
Consultation

Report and Options
Appraisal for the Delegated
Decision Panel

Report and Options
Appraisal for the Delegated
Decision Panel

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 41

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Junior Youth Inclusion
Projects
Contract acceptance

Family Outreach Workers
(West)
To award the contract for
the above.

Decision Maker

Independent Advice and
Guidance
Contract Acceptance

Key Decisions

3/11/08

3/11/08

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Procurements Unit,
Head of Children’s
Centre Services
(HoCCS), Children’s
Centre Managers
(West)

CPU

Corporate
Procurement Unit,
Joint Preventative
Commissioning Panel,
Joint Preventative
Partnership

Proposed
Consultation

Tender evaluation
documents

None.

None.

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Children's
Services

Director of Children's
Services

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 42

Request to enter into a
contract with Carr Gomm
for the Provision of
Supporting People
Services for homeless
families and women
experiencing domestic
violence (Leeds Floating
Support for Families, SID
1031)
Approval to enter into
Supporting People contract
with Carr Gomm for a
period of 3 (1+1) years.

Key Decisions

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Decision Maker

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision
N/A

Proposed
Consultation

Report and Options
Appraisal for the Delegated
Decision Panel

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 43

Financial Management
Restructure
Approval of the Restructure
of the Authority wide
Financial Management
function.

At this stage it is not
determined what these are
but as action plans are
progressed it is expected
that there will be a range of
changes to resourcing to
ensure achievement of
targets. There will be a
series of reports as this is
developed.

Transforming Social Care
In response to the
government agenda
“Transforming Social Care”
(DoH LA Circular (DH)
(2008)1) there will need to
be a variety of changes to
staffing arrangements
predominantly within Adult
Social Care.

Key Decisions

Director of
Resources

Director of Adult
Social Services,
Director of
Resources

Decision Maker

3/11/08

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Extensive consultation
with Unions and other
stakeholders including
staff planned from late
June 2008.

Chief Officer Delegated
Decision Report

As a minimum the
Local Government Circular
Executive Board
LAC (DH) (2008)
member, Staff and
Trade Unions.
However a
consultation plan will
be developed to
ensure all
stakeholders are
consulted and
informed appropriately.

Proposed
Consultation

Director of Resources

Director of Adult Social
Services, Director of
Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 44

Director of
Resources

Chief Officer,
Corporate Property
Management

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Demolition of buildings at
the Copperfields College
site
Authority to spend on
demolition works

Area Delivery Plans for
2008/09
Endorsement of 10 Area
Delivery Plans

Street Design Guide
Approval of Supplementary
Planning Document

Decision Maker

Compulsory Purchase
Order (Parent Scheme)
Authority to spend from
Director of Resources

Key Decisions

5/11/08

5/11/08

3/11/08

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Already carried out

Elected Ward
Members, Area
Committees,
Regeneration
Management Teams

Already carried out

RHB Project Board

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Report to decision maker

Design and Cost Report

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Chief Officer,
Corporate Property
Management

Director of Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 45

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

Proposed Leeds Arena,
Selection of Preferred
Development Proposal
To select preferred
developer / development
process for the proposed
Leeds arena

The Living City Wage
To consider the
implications of introducing
a Living Wage for Leeds.

Decision Maker

Financial Performance Half
Year 2008/09
In noting the financial
position at the half year for
the Authority a decision will
be required as to the
treatment of any variation
identified.

Key Decisions

5/11/08

5/11/08

5/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

To consider matters
already nationally and
locally researched by
Living Wage
organisations.

Arena Project Board
and Yorkshire Forward

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Resources

Director of City
Development

Director of Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 46

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Round 6 Housing Private
Finance Initiative
Programme- Lifetime
Homes; Lifetime
Neighbourhoods
Decision to submit
Expression of Interest

RFId Equipment in
Libraries
To seek authority to incur
expenditure for £1,200,000
on the programme of
installation of Radio
Frequency Identification
equipment in libraries.

Decision Maker

Leeds Town and District
Centres ProgrammeOakwood Phase 2 Town
and District Centre
To approve expenditure for
the Town and District
Centre Regeneration
Scheme as supported by
Asset Management Group
(AMG).

Key Decisions

5/11/08

5/11/08

5/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

N/A

Executive Members,
Ward Members, Older
People’s Strategic
Partnership Board

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Deputy Chief
Executive

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 47

Future of the former
Horsforth Library
Executive Board is
requested to give authority
to spend in the amount of
£895,000 in respect of the
proposed refurbishment of
the former Horsforth
Library to provide a new
Youth Services Centre in
Horsforth and office
accommodation for the
WNW Area Management
Team.

Adult Social Care's Older
People's Day Serviceservice improvement plan
Approval of proposal that
day services will no longer
be provided at these
centres: Richmond Hill,
The Willows, Farfield and
Pendas Way. Approval of
related reinvestment plan
detailing how resources
released will be reinvested
in older people’s services.

Key Decisions

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Adult
Health and Social
Care)

Decision Maker

5/11/08

5/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Ward Members,
Deputy Executive
Member for Learning,
Asset Management
Group, Directors of
Environment &
Neighbourhoods and
the Children’s Service.

Permission was given
by Executive Board in
July 2008 to undertake
consultation with
service users and
carers directly affected
and this has been
concluded.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The document to be issued
to the decision maker with
the agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of Adult Social
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 48

Chief Recreation
Officer

Chief Highways
Officer

Highways Maintenance
Projects estimated to cost
in excess of £5,000 for
inclusion in the Highway
Maintenance Capital
Programme 2009/2010.

To set Sport Centre prices
for 2009/10
To agree Leisure Centre
Prices for 2009/10

Chief Officer
(PPPU)

Decision Maker

Framework Agreement for
Financial Advisors for PFI
Projects
To award the contract for
the Framework Agreement.

Key Decisions

17/11/08

10/11/08

6/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Consultation with the
Executive Member for
Leisure

Each elected member
will be consulted on
the proposed streets in
their ward during
September 2008.

N/A (advisors from
client departments
consulted)

Proposed
Consultation

Report and comparison of
prices with other providers
and other councils

Report to the Director of
City Development

Report to Panel

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Recreation
Officer

Chief Highways Officer

Deputy Chief
Executive

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 49

Maintenance and repairs to
Leeds City Council's site
excluding Housing Stock in
the trades of painting and
decorating; drainage / drain
clearance; gutter cleaning;
glazing; lightning
protection; metalwork,
roofing and tarmacdam /
groundworks
Award of Contracts

Request to waive contract
procedure rule 12 and
enter into a Supporting
People contract with
Stonham Division of Home
Group Ltd.
Authorisation to waive
contract procedure rule 12
and enter into a Supporting
People contract with
Stonham Division of Home
Group Ltd. for the Leeds
Prevention Service,
Kirkstall Lodge and South
Leeds Tenancy
Sustainment services.

Key Decisions

Chief Officer,
Corporate Property
Management

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Decision Maker

1/12/08

1/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Client Departments

N/A

Proposed
Consultation

Contract Award Report

Report to be presented to
the Delegated Decision
Panel

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Officer,
Corporate Property
Management

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 50

Request for approval to
enter into a Supporting
People SLA for services for
people with mental health
problems
Approval to enter into a
Supporting People Service
Level Agreement with
Leeds City Council for their
accommodation based
services for people with
mental health problems –
Cottlingley Court, Spen
Croft and Bewerley Croft
Services.

Key Decisions

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Decision Maker

1/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision
N/A

Proposed
Consultation

Report to be presented to
the Delegated Decision
Panel

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 51

Vision for Council Leisure
Centres
To consider proposals for
future investment in
Council Leisure Centres
following the conclusion of
a public consultation
exercise.

A653 Dewsbury Road Bus
Priority Measures, Ring
Road Beeston Park Bus
Land
Permission to construct the
scheme, subject to
satisfactory funding
arrangements being in
place on return of tenders.
The works are required to
provide a quality bus
corridor identified in the
LTP and are an intrinsic
part of the Yorkshire Bus
Initiative.

Key Decisions

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Decision Maker

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

The public, Area
Committees, Youth
Council, Citizens
Panel and other key
stake holders.

Initial Member
consultation has taken
place.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Recreation
Officer

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 52

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Parks and Green Space
Strategy
To seek approval for the
publication of the Parks
and Green Space Strategy.

Options for changes to
Executive Board
primary provision in the
(Portfolio: Children's
Richmond Hill Planning
Services)
Area
Permission to consult on
options including
1) Close Mount St
Mary’s and expand
Richmond Hill
2) Close Mount St
Mary’s
and
Richmond Hill, and
establish a new
school
3) Close Mount St
Mary’s
and
Richmond Hill, and
establish a joint
community
and
Catholic provision.

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Consultation
January/February
2009

Extensive consultation
has taken place
throughout the
development of the
strategy with a range
of stakeholders and
members.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 53

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

City Centre Park
In principle support for the
development of a City
Centre Park.

South Leeds High School
Approve the proposal to
close South Leeds High
School and replace it with
an Academy to serve the
needs of children and
young people from the
Beeston & Holbeck, City &
Hunslet and Middleton
Park wards.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Decision Maker

A639 Arla Landslip
To approve expenditure
necessary to make the
carriageway safe and keep
this important link open to
traffic.

Key Decisions

3/12/08

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Public consultation
including Ward
Councillors

Members, Officers,
CABE, Civic Trust

N/A

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of City
Development

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 54

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Commissioning on Post 16
Provision
Agree the principles
underpinning the Leeds
approach to the
commissioning of 14+
provision and recommend
that the LSC agree specific
proposals for the
commissioning of post 16
provision from September
2009.

Decision Maker

Intake High School Arts
College
Approve the proposal to
close Intake High School
and replace it with an
Academy to serve the
needs of children and
young people from the
Bramley and Stanningley
Ward.

Key Decisions

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

School Governors,
secondary
Headteachers, FE
Colleges and LSC

Public consultation
including Ward
Councillors

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 55

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Design Cost ReportBoston Spa CC
To inject £350k into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Decision Maker

Design Cost ReportRoundhay CC
To inject £300k into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

Leeds Town and District
Centres Programme Headingley Town Centre
Improvements
To approve expenditure for
the Headingley Town and
District Centre
Regeneration scheme as
supported by Asset
Management Group
(AMG).

Key Decisions

3/12/08

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
Providers and
stakeholders city wide

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
Providers and
stakeholders city wide

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Children's
Services

Director of Children's
Services

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 56

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Adult
Health and Social
Care)

Regional Spatial Strategy
Review- Leeds City Council
comments
Executive Board’s
consideration of City
Council’s comments in
response to the RSS
Review consultation.

Reprovision of Windlesford
Green (a hostel for adults
with learning disabilities in
Woodlesford)
To update Members on
revisions to the scheme for
a new supported living
development for people
with learning disabilities at
Windlesford Green, and to
obtain approval to proceed
with the revised scheme.

Decision Maker

Leeds Local Development
Framework Annual
Monitoring Report
Executive Board Approval
of City Council
recommendations for the
Secretary of State’s
consideration.

Key Decisions

3/12/08

3/12/08

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Consultation has taken
place with service
users, parents &
carers, staff, local
residents and Ward
Members.

Via Development Plan
Panel

Development Plan
Panel

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Adult Social
Services

Director of City
Development

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 57

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

City Centre Swimming
To agree a capital
contribution to the
University of Leeds in
return for public swimming
access to their proposed
new pool.

Chief ICT Officer

Decision Maker

Family Support 8-13 year
olds
To accept the Contract

The provision of a new
mobile and fixed voice and
data services contract
The tender is currently
being advertised and we
aim to be in position to
make a decision and award
in December 2008. The
new contract will need to
be in place for when the
current agreement with
Orange expires in March
2009.

Key Decisions

14/1/09

2/1/09

1/1/09

Expected
Date of
Decision

CPU, LCF Executive
Board, Family Support
and Parenting Board,
Family Support and
Parenting sub-groups
and wedges.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Tender document

Tender pack / bids

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Director of Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 58

Decision Maker

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Key Decisions

The City Varieties Music
Hall Refurbishment Project
Approve the incurring of
expenditure for the
proposed refurbishment

Options for changes to
primary provision in the
Wetherby Planning Area
Permission to consult on
options to remove surplus
places in the Wetherby
area.

Clapgate Primary SchoolExtension works to form
two forms of entry school
Approval to carry out
capital works and incur
expenditure in relation to
the proposed scheme to
carry out extension works.

14/1/09

14/1/09

14/1/09

Expected
Date of
Decision

Clapgate Primary
School

Consultation
February/March 2009

The Executive
Member for
Development and
Regeneration and the
Executive Member for
Leisure.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 59

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Children's Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Windmill Primary School Extension Works to form
two forms of entry school
Approval to carry out
capital works and incur
expenditure in relation to
the proposed scheme to
carry out extension works.

Design Cost ReportFarsley CC
To inject £350k into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

Decision Maker

Leeds Flood Alleviation
Scheme: Design Guide &
Vision
To approve the Design
Guide and Vision

Key Decisions

14/1/09

14/1/09

14/1/09

Expected
Date of
Decision

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

To inject £350k into
The report to be issued to
the Children’s Services the decision maker with the
Capital Programme
agenda for the meeting
and give authority to
incur this expenditure.

Windmill Primary
School

There have been
consultations with
stakeholders and
internally. Joint public
consultations will be
held in November
2008.

Proposed
Consultation

Director of Children's
Services

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 60

Decision Maker

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Children's Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Key Decisions

Design Cost ReportGarforth CC
To inject £450k into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

UDP Review Saved
Policies
Executive Board Approval
of City Council
recommendations for the
Secretary of State’s
consideration.

14/1/09

14/1/09

Expected
Date of
Decision

Development Plan
Panel

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
Providers and
stakeholders city wide.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 61

Bankside- Provision of
Newly Built School
Give approval to incur
capital expenditure in
relation to the proposed
scheme to provide a new
build school at Bankside
Primary School.

Key Decisions

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Decision Maker

13/2/09

Expected
Date of
Decision
Consultations will
include public meeting
with Governors,
parents school users
and community in
attendance, full ward
councillor briefing, full
consultation with
governing body,
school users including
parents, pupils and
community users, and
other Council services.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 62

Bankside- Provision of
Newly Built School
Give approval to incur
capital expenditure in
relation to the proposed
scheme to provide a new
build school at Bankside
Primary Schoo.

Key Decisions

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Decision Maker

13/2/09

Expected
Date of
Decision
Consultations will
include public meeting
with Governors,
parents school users
and community in
attendance, full ward
councillor briefing, full
consultation with
governing body,
school users including
parents, pupils and
community users, and
other Council services.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 63
Councillor Stewart Golton
Councillor Richard Harker
Councillor Peter Harrand
Councillor Keith Wakefield
Councillor Robert Finnigan
Councillor Judith Blake

Children’s Services

Learning

Adult Health and Social Care

Leader of the Labour Group

Leader of the Morley Borough
Independent Group

Advisory Member

In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.

Councillor John Procter

Councillor Steve Smith

Environmental Services

Leisure

Councillor Andrew Carter

Development and Regeneration

Councillor John Leslie Carter

Councillor Richard Brett

Central and Corporate

Neighbourhoods and Housing

Executive Member

Executive Board Portfolios

Key decisions are those executive decisions:
• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or
• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards

NOTES

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 5TH NOVEMBER, 2008
PRESENT:

Councillor R Brett in the Chair
Councillors A Carter, J L Carter,
R Finnigan, S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand,
J Procter, S Smith and K Wakefield
Councillor J Blake – Non voting advisory member

113

Exclusion of the Public
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the
grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as
follows:
(a)
Appendices 7 and 8 to the report referred to in minute 120 under the
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the
grounds that the information contained in the appendices relates to the
financial or business affairs of Bellway Homes Ltd, Bellway PLC, and
the council. This information is not publicly available from the statutory
registers of information kept in respect of certain companies and
charities. It is considered that it is not in the public interest to disclose
this information at this point in time as this could prejudice the
commercial interests of the parties to the Shareholders Agreement. In
particular, if Bellway or the Council wished to negotiate terms with
other potential developers of a phase or part of a phase, those
developers might gain an advantage in those negotiations by knowing
the full commercial terms agreed in respect of exclusivity, competition
and incentivisation, and how costs are met in respect of the phase
approval process.
It is considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure,
the council’s statutory obligations under sec 123 of the Local
Government Act 1972, and under sec 32 of the Housing Act 1985 and
the General Housing Consents 2005 to achieve the best consideration
that can reasonably be obtained are unaffected by these
arrangements, and indeed the phase approval process provides for this
to be demonstrated at the initial stage of the process. In addition,
much information about the terms of particular land transactions
between the parties will be publicly available from the Land Registry
following completion and registration. Consequently it is considered
that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing this information at this point in time.
(b)

Appendices 1 and 2 and associated plans as referred to in minute 133
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 65

on the grounds, that as they evaluate the short listed bidders’
proposals and their financial offers to develop the arena, compares the
bidder’s financial offers with the evolving Public Sector Comparators
and set out the basis of the Council’s legal agreements and funding
contribution to facilitate the development of the arena, it is considered
that the public interest in maintaining this information as exempt
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the developer’s proposals,
the terms of the respective legal agreements and funding provision, as
disclosure may prejudice the outcome of the procurement process and
the cost to the Council for developing the arena.
114

Late Items
The Chair admitted the following late item to the agenda as follows:
Department of Health Extra Care Housing Fund Bid 2008-2010 (Minute 127)
The signed partnership agreement for the development must be in place by
November 2008 in accordance with the terms of the grant by the Department
of Health.

115

Declaration of Interests
Councillor J Procter declared a personal interest in the item entitled,
‘Proposed Leeds Arena – Selection of Preferred Developer/Site’, (minute 133)
as the Chair of one of the subject companies was known to him.
Councillor Brett declared a personal interest in the item entitled, ‘Older
People’s Day Services: Service Improvement Plan’, (minute 125) as a
member of Burmantofts Senior Action Committee.
Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in the item entitled, ‘Skills
Pledge, Train to Gain and Apprenticeships’, (minute 131) as a Governor of
Joseph Priestley College.
Councillor Blake declared a personal interest in the item entitled,
‘Implementation of the Mental Health Act 2007’, (minute 128) as a member of
Leeds NHS Primary Care Trust.

116

Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 8th October 2008 be
approved.
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

117

Adoption of the Supplementary Planning Document of the Street Design
Guide and Response to the Deputation of the National Federation of the
Blind
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the outcome of
consultation on the Street Design Guide, on its proposed adoption as a
Supplementary Planning Document and as a response to the concerns
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 66

expressed by the Leeds Branch of the National Federation of the Blind in their
deputation to Council on 10th September 2008.
The Board noted that additional information which related to this matter had
been received from the Leeds Branch of the National Federation of the Blind.
RESOLVED – That the report be deferred, with a further report being
submitted to the Board following the consideration of the additional
information received from the Leeds Branch of the National Federation of the
Blind.
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING
118

Area Delivery Plans for 2008/09
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report seeking
endorsement of the 10 Area Delivery Plans.
RESOLVED – That the 2008/09 Area Delivery Plans produced by the Area
Committees be endorsed.

119

Public Private Finance Initiative Round 6 - Submission of Expression of
Interest
The Chief Regeneration Officer submitted a report on the development of an
expression of interest for the implementation of a programme of new house
building in the city in order to create a range of Extra Care and Lifetime
Homes provision in key locations through the support of Housing PFI Credits.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That approval be given for the submission of the Expression of Interest
to the CLG for Round 6 Housing PFI Credits of £271,000,000.
(b)
That an Outline Business Case be developed for the implementation of
a programme of new house building in the City to create a range of
Extra Care and Lifetime Homes housing through the support of Round
6 Housing PFI Credits.
(c)
That a further report be brought to this Board in early 2009 identifying
land which will be required to deliver the programme.

120

EASEL Joint Venture Partnership
The Directors of Environment and Neighbourhoods and City Development
submitted a joint report on a proposal to set up and operate a joint venture
partnership through a private limited company with Bellway plc and Bellway
Homes Ltd to deliver the Council’s regeneration programme in east and south
east Leeds.
Following consideration of appendices 7 and 8 to the report, designated as
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 67

RESOLVED –
(a)
That the Board reaffirms that the primary objective of the EASEL
initiative is to promote and improve the economic, social and
environmental wellbeing of the EASEL area and its residents, having
considered all of the matters in section 2 of the Local Government Act
2000 as set out in the report, and having also considered all of the
evidence set out in the report relating to how the initiative is likely to
promote and improve wellbeing in the EASEL area, and agrees that
each aspect of the arrangements set out in the report is likely to
promote or improve the economic, social and environmental wellbeing
of the EASEL area and its residents in the manner set out in the report.
(b)
That the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement for the Joint Venture
Company as set out in the report be approved by Executive Board,
together with the establishment of the JVCo with Bellway.
(c)
That the first EASEL phase plan, showing the sixteen sites considered
as priority for development in the EASEL area be approved.
(d)
That the initial eight sites to be developed through the JVCo be
approved.
(e)
That delegation to the Director of City Development be authorised to
make amendments to the phase plan to ensure the effective operation
of the JVCo as set out in appendix 3 of the report.
(f)
That the Directors of City Development and Environment and
Neighbourhoods and Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate
Governance) be authorised to conclude and execute the Shareholders’
Agreement on behalf of the Council as set out in the report.
(g)
That the development, by the JVCo, of the five neighbourhood plans be
approved and that the Chief Regeneration Officer be authorised to
manage the production of the neighbourhood plans with the JVCo
subject to the completed plans being brought to this Board for final
approval.
(h)
That the use of the business case for project development to be
operated by the JVCo be approved subject to final approval (by the
Council as JVCo shareholder) of a project by Executive Board.
(i)
That the delegations to the Chief Regeneration Officer and Director of
City Development for the development of projects as set out in
appendix 3 of the report be approved.
(j)
That, as prospective shareholder, approval be given to the initial draft
business plan and draft budget for the JVCo and to the delegations to
officers to participate in the management of the JVCo as set out in
appendix 3 of the report.
(k)
That approval be given to the use of entry premium to fund the working
capital of the company subject to approval of the JVCo draft business
plan and draft budget.
(l)
That the arrangements for providing additional working capital to the
company once the entry premium is spent be noted.
(m) That the company dividends policy be approved and that responsibility
on these issues be delegated to the Director of Resources as set out in
appendix 3 of the report.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 68

(n)

(o)
(p)
(q)

(r)

(s)
(t)

121

That the development of an equity loan scheme on the first phase of
the EASEL development sites using a commuted sum mechanism be
authorised.
That the delegations to the Chief Housing Services Officer on the
details of the scheme be authorised.
That the transfer of the remaining funds from the Amberton Park equity
loan scheme to the EASEL equity loan scheme be approved.
That the nomination of the Council’s initial directors to the company be
the Directors of City Development and of Environment and
Neighbourhoods as unpaid directors subject to their acceptance of
office and of the directors mandate.
That the directors mandate for the Council’s directors and the provision
by the Council of the necessary indemnity insurance for the Council’s
directors be approved.
That the arrangements for the appointment of future directors and
deputies as set out in appendix 3 of the report be approved.
That a report be submitted to the Board providing further information on
the regenerative aspects of the project in addition to other potential
sources of funding which could be pursued.

A Strategy for Improving Leeds Private Sector Housing
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on
proposed future investment and regeneration proposals for private sector
housing in Leeds with reference to findings of recent research into back-toback housing and the most recent Leeds Private Sector Housing Condition
Survey.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the findings of the report together with the actions undertaken by
the Council to improve the private rented sector stock be noted.
(b)
That a further report be brought to this Board on urgent action to tackle
poor quality private housing.
(c)
That a detailed submission be made to the Homes and Communities
Agency setting out a costed programme of investment over the next
five years.
(d)
That a report be brought back to this Board on the outcome of
discussions as part of a comprehensive plan to improve private sector
housing in Leeds with a focus on back-to-back housing.
CHILDREN'S SERVICES

122

Deputation to Council - The need of Local Schools and Communities for
Sports Facilities in the Hyde Park Area
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report in response to the
deputation to Council from local Hyde Park residents on 10th September 2008.
A revised version of the report which provided more detailed information in the
form of paragraphs 5.3 to 5.5, and minor clarification to wording in paragraph
5.1, had been circulated to Members prior to the meeting.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 69

RESOLVED – That the report be deferred, with a further report being
submitted to the Board for consideration in due course.
123

Inclusion and Early Support: Hawthorn Centre Deputation to Council
The Acting Chief Officer Early Years and Integrated Youth Service submitted
a report in response to the deputation to Council from representatives of
Leeds Mencap on 10th September 2008.
RESOLVED – That the Board accept the report showing how Hawthorn had
the opportunity to be involved throughout the commissioning process and how
as a result of that process, services will continue to be provided that meet the
needs of disabled children and their families and look to further develop the
quality of that support in the future.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
contained within this minute)
LEISURE

124

Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) New Technology in Libraries Phases 3 and 4.
The Director of City Development submitted a report on a proposal to
complete the installation programme of Radio Frequency Identification
technology in libraries to enable self service within libraries allowing them to
open for longer hours at a reduced cost.
RESOLVED – That approval be given for the injection of £1,249,950 into the
2008/09 Capital Programme, funded by the Strategic Development Fund, and
that scheme expenditure in the same amount be authorised.
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

125

Older People's Day Services: Service Improvement Plan
Further to minute 46 of the meeting held on 16th July 2008 the Director of
Adult Social Services submitted a report on progress of work undertaken to
implement the proposals which were approved and on other ongoing work in
relation to the pilots and developing locality plans which will set out how the
service model will be delivered city wide.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the Board notes the work which has been done to implement the
decision of July 2008 relating to Richmond Hill Day Centre, Farfield,
the Willows and Pendas Way and agrees the proposal that day
services no longer be provided on those sites.
(b)
That the related commitment to reinvest in older people’s services be
noted together with the progress being made to develop locality plans
to deliver the new service model through pilots, consultation and other
detailed work.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 70

(c)

That further reports be brought to this Board in 2009 as the change
process progresses.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield
requested it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
contained within this minute).
126

The Mental Capacity Act 2005
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the principal
requirements and implications associated with the implementation in Leeds of
the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and outlining the requirements of the
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards which are incorporated into the Act.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the key features of the Act, as highlighted in the report, be noted
together with progress made to date in its full implementation and the
plans which are being progressed to raise greater awareness among
the public of its provisions and implications.
(b)
That the content of the annual report of the Articulate Advocacy
Service also be noted.

127

Department of Health Extra Care Housing Fund Bid: 2008-2010
Further to minute 94 of the meeting held on 8th October 2008, the Chief
Officer Adult Social Care submitted a report which clarified the cost
implications of the proposal to redevelop Hemingway House older persons
residential home in Hunslet.
RESOLVED –
(a). That the proposal to develop 45 units of Extra Care Housing for older
people on the site of Hemingway House, in partnership with Methodist Homes
Association and the Primary Care Trust be approved.
(b). That the sale of the land at Hemingway House at less than best value to a
value foregone of £525,000 be endorsed.

128

Implementation of The Mental Health Act 2007
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report advising of the main
changes to the Mental Health Act and on the submission of the
Implementation Self Assessment Tool to the Department of Health in June of
this year.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE

129

Financial Health Monitoring 2008/09 - Half Year Report
The Director of Resources submitted a report on the Council’s financial
health position for 2008/09 after six months of the financial year, covering
revenue expenditure and income to date compared to the approved budget,
the projected year end position and proposed actions to work towards
achieving a balanced budget by the year end. The report also provided an
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 71

update on the general fund capital programme and highlighted the position in
relation to other key financial indicators.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the projected financial position of the authority after six months of
the new financial year be noted.
(b)
That directorates continue to develop and implement action plans.
(c)
That Council be recommended to approve the budget adjustments as
described in section 3 of the report.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
contained within this minute).
130

Treasury Management Strategy Update 2008/09
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing a review and update
of the Treasury Management Strategy for 2008/09 which was approved by the
Board on 8th February 2008.
RESOLVED –
(a). That the report be noted.
(b). That the Board’s thanks be extended to those colleagues employed within
the field of Treasury Management for the valuable work which they continue
to undertake.

131

Skills Pledge, Train to Gain and Apprenticeships
The Director of Resources submitted a report on three key initiatives arising
from the national skills improvement agenda, namely ‘The Skills Pledge’,
‘Train to Gain Funds’ and ‘Apprenticeships’.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That this Board endorses the signing of the Skills Pledge and the
associated action plan to ensure maximisation of Train to Gain funding
and improved skills levels.
(b)
That the changes in approach to the provision of apprenticeships in the
Council be noted.

132

Information Governance Framework
The Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) submitted
a report on a proposed Information Governance Framework as the corporate
model for implementing information governance across the Council.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the Information Governance Framework be approved as a method
for defining the Council’s approach to information governance and
setting out the policies, procedures and standards required to deliver
the information governance objectives.
(b)
That the intention of the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy
and Improvement) to sign-off relevant policies and procedures
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 72

associated with the Framework under the Council’s delegated decision
making arrangements be endorsed.
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION
133

Proposed Leeds Arena, Selection of Preferred Developer/Site
The Director of City Development submitted a report on progress made with
the procurement of a developer and site for the proposed Leeds Arena, on the
proposed preferred and reserve sites for the development and necessary
financial approvals.
Appendices 1 and 2 and associated plans were designated as exempt under
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3). Appendix 2 and associated
plans were circulated at the meeting.
Following consideration of the 2 exempt appendices and associated plans in
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the developer procurement competition for the arena be
terminated without the award of a contract.
(b)
That Claypit Lane be approved as the preferred site for the
development of an arena.
(c)
That Elland Road be approved as the reserve site for the development
of an arena.
(d)
That in the event that the preferred site cannot be delivered or it
ceases to be the most economically viable or it no longer offers the
best value for money to the Council, the Director of City Development
with the concurrence of the Executive Member for Development and
Regeneration be authorised to take appropriate action to pursue the
development at Elland Road as the reserve site for the proposed
development of an arena.
(e)
That the acquisition of the site of the Brunswick Building from Leeds
Metropolitan University on the terms detailed in the report be approved.
(f)
That the Directors of Resources and City Development be authorised
to enter into a legal agreement with Town Centre Car Parks Ltd on the
terms as detailed in the report on the basis that such an agreement is
economically advantageous to the Council and will financially support
the development of an arena on the preferred site.
(g)
That authority be given to incur expenditure as detailed in the report
from existing Capital Scheme No 13307 on the acquisition of the site of
the Brunswick Building, its demolition and the cost of fees to progress
design/cost proposals and the project delivery model.
(h)
That officers report back on the proposed project delivery model and
scheme proposals/costs for the development of an arena on the
preferred site.
(i)
That the transfer of funds as detailed in the report from the Strategic
Development Fund into existing Capital Scheme No 13307 be
authorised.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 73

(j)

That authority be given for an injection of funds as detailed in the
report into existing Capital Scheme No 13307, comprising funding from
Yorkshire Forward (subject to formal approval from the Yorkshire
Forward Board) with the balance in the first instance to be funded from
unsupported borrowing.

(The matters referred to in this minute were not eligible for Call In on the basis
that the City Council took the decision to pursue a two stream procurement
process to select a preferred developer/site for the proposed arena at a
meeting of the Executive Board on 13 December 2006. Thereafter, at its
meeting on 4 July 2007, Executive Board authorised the Director of City
Development under the Council’s scheme of delegation, to approve the short
listing of potential developers/sites during the Competitive Dialogue
Procurement process. Both decisions taken by the Executive Board were
subject to the Council’s Call In procedures. The decisions contained within
this minute which relate to the selection of the preferred site for the arena are
consistent with the decisions taken by Executive Board in December 2006
and July 2007.
The matters relating to the proposed legal agreements to be entered into to
progress the arena development on the preferred site, the proposed funding
arrangements and the authority to incur expenditure, were also designated as
exempt from Call In. This is due to the fact that under the Council’s
Constitution, a decision may be declared as being Exempt from Call In if it is
considered that any delay in concluding the funding arrangements and legal
agreements may result in parties to the agreements seeking to renegotiate
the terms of such agreements and as such could increase the level of public
sector gap funding required to facilitate the arena development.)
134

Former Horsforth Library - Refurbishment for Youth Centre and Area
Management Team Accommodation
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the proposed
refurbishment of the former Horsforth library building to provide
accommodation for a youth centre and the area management team and for
use by the Area Committee.
RESOLVED – That authority be given for expenditure of £895,000 on this
scheme.

135

Proposed Takeover of HBOS by Lloyds TSB
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on
the action being taken locally in relation to the proposed takeover of HBOS by
Lloyds TSB; the takeover of Bradford and Bingley by the Government, and
sale of some of its assets.
The Board was advised of the recent announcement that the Carlsberg Tetley
Brewery in Leeds was due to close in 2011. In response the Board discussed
potential ways in which the Council could assist those affected by the closure.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 74

RESOLVED – That the report be noted, that the actions being taken be
endorsed and that further reports be brought back to the Board as the position
becomes clearer.
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
136

Waste Solution for Leeds - Residual Waste Treatment PFI Project Evaluation Methodology and Update
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on
progress of the project, on proposed criteria and sub-criteria for the evaluation
of bids, identifying a price ceiling above which bidders may be disqualified and
on the proposed approach to dealing with third party waste.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the report be noted and approval given to the criteria, sub-criteria
and weightings for the evaluation of bids received for the project.
(b)
That the revised Price Ceiling resulting from the change in the waste
flow model be noted and that this Board approves that any bids
received above this ceiling may not proceed further in the procurement.
(c)
That the approach towards third party waste be approved.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakelfield
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions taken in this
minute)
DATE OF PUBLICATION:
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN:

7TH NOVEMBER 2008
14TH NOVEMBER 2008

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on
Monday 17th November 2008)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

